Public Document Pack

NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
MEETING OF CORPORATE DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE MEMBERS FOR
THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SERVICE

Tuesday, 18 October 2022 / 1.00 pm

AGENDA

1 Apologies for Absence

2 Declarations of Interest

3 Items for Executive Member decision

Hovingham School Closure
o Outdoor Learning Servcie Fees and Charges

4 Items for Corporate Director decision

None for this meeting

5 Briefing Items

Free School Bid Application - Martin Surtees

6 Any other Business

Executive Members’ Business
Corporate Director's Update

Date of future formal meetings (1.00 pm)

1 November

6 December

Circulation:

Executive Members Officer attendees
Janet Sanderson Stuart Carlton
Annabel Wilkinson Howard Emmett

Copies for Information (electronic only)

Carl Les Barry Khan Mel Hutchinson
Janet Jefferson Ian Morton Jane le Sage
Communications Unit Ray Busby/Daniel Harry Penny Yeadon

Amanda Newbold

Page 1
OFFICIAL
OFFICIAL



This page is intentionally left blank



1.0

11

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

Agenda Iltem 3

NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S SERVICE
CORPORATE DIRECTOR MEETING WITH EXECUTIVE MEMBERS
18 October 2022
Hovingham Church of England Voluntary Controlled Primary School
PURPOSE OF REPORT

To seek Executive Member approval to consult on a proposal that the County Council
should close Hovingham Church of England Voluntary Controlled Primary School from
31 March 2023.

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY

At a recent governing body meeting of the Federation of Hovingham CE Primary School
and St Hilda's CE Primary School it was resolved, with regret and reluctance, to ask
the County Council to consult on closure proposals for Hovingham CE Primary School.

The Federated Governing Body of Hovingham CE Primary School and St Hilda’s CE
Primary School, have not reached this decision lightly and have already worked to
support the School through the Federation with St Hilda’s CE VC Primary School,
Ampleforth which has been in place since 2016.

The main factor prompting the request is there are currently no pupils on roll at
Hovingham. The School has operated with 40 pupils or below for the last decade. Since
the 2017/18 academic year there has been a downward trend of pupil numbers and
pupils numbers fell from 33 in May 2020 to 24 in May 2021. This trend accelerated
across the 2021/22 academic year with the school having 20 pupils on roll in October,
16 in January and only 7 in May 2022 (all of whom were in key stage 2). Between May
2022 and the start of the new term in September 2022 all remaining pupils departed
and no new starters commenced the term in September.

Finance is also a key concern. The pupil numbers for the October 2022 census form
the basis of a schools’ funding for the 2023/24 financial year. The Department for
Education (DfE) have confirmed that where a school has no pupils in the October
census they will not allocate any funding for that school in the schools block element of
Dedicated School Grant (DSG) funding that a local authority receives to fund schools
and academies located within the local authority area.

In the event of the school remaining open, the local authority would need to determine
whether the school should continue to be funded through the school funding formula. If
this were agreed, the school would receive the formula lump sum funding (2023/24
indicative value £128k) and the school rates funding (£2.5k). Any 2023/24 formula
funding allocation for Hovingham CE Primary would need to be funded from the DSG
funding allocations provided for other schools and academies within North Yorkshire.

If the school closure were to go ahead, the individual school budgets would need to be
separated out from the current amalgamated Federation budget. Initial work has been

undertaken on this process; the indicative position as at 31 March 2022 is a cumulative
revenue budget deficit of £5.2k for Hovingham CE Primary School. Work is currently

Page 3

OFFICIAL



2.7

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

being undertaken with the Federation leadership on forecasting the budget position to
the end of the current financial year.

In addition, the permanent Headteacher post became vacant on 31 August 2022 and
from September 2022 temporary leadership has been in place. This is provided by the
Executive Headteacher of Foston, Terrington and Stillington schools, and covers both
Hovingham and their Federated School, St Hilda’'s CE VC Primary School in
Ampleforth. The Federation Governing Body will require clarity over the future of
Hovingham School to allow them to make permanent arrangements for future
leadership.

HOVINGHAM CE VC PRIMARY

Pupil numbers

Hovingham is a 4-11 CE VC Primary School and currently has no children on roll. The
school is located in arural area of Ryedale, serving families living in and near the village
of Hovingham, and the surrounding area. The number of children at Hovingham CE VC
Primary School has been falling over the past few years:

2014/15 - 35

2015/16 — 36

2016/17 — 37

2017/18 — 37

2018/19 - 29

2019/20 - 33

2020/21 — 24

2021/22 — 7 (May 2022 Census)
2022/23 -0

The School has a Published Admission Number (PAN) of 8 pupils per year group. The
School has capacity to accommodate up to 60 pupils if all spaces are in use, and
therefore has the potential to contribute 60 places in the local area

Finance

Pupil numbers determine the funding for a school budget. The DfE have confirmed that
in the exceptional situation where a school has no pupils, no funding would be provided
to the local authority for that school through the DfE DSG schools block funding; this is
the grant funding used to fund school delegated budgets. North Yorkshire County
Council will not receive a school funding allocation for Hovingham CE Primary in the
2023/24 financial year as no pupils will be recorded on the DfE October 2022 school
census. In the event of the school remaining open, the local authority would need to
determine whether the school should continue to be funded through the school funding
formula. If this were agreed, the school would receive the formula lump sum funding
(2023/24 indicative value £128k) and the school rates funding (£2.5k). Any 2023/24
formula funding allocation for Hovingham CE Primary would need to be funded from
the DSG funding allocations provided for other schools and academies within North
Yorkshire.

The Federation of Hovingham CE Primary School and St Hilda’s CE Primary School
operate an amalgamated budget for the two schools within the Federation. The
balance on the Federation amalgamated revenue budget as at 31 March 2022 was
an overall budget surplus of £90.1k. The indicative position of the individual schools is
a budget deficit of £5.2k for Hovingham and a budget surplus of £95.3k for St Hilda’s.

Page 4

OFFICIAL



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

There appears to be no reasonable long-term prospect of recovery for the Hovingham
budget given there will be no DfE funding allocation for the school for the 2023/24
financial year.

The 2022/23 Start Budget submitted to the Local Authority for the Federation in May
2022 forecasts an accumulated revenue budget surplus at the end of the 2022/23
financial year of £27.5k. The budget forecasts that the Federation will have an
accumulated revenue budget deficit of £71.8k at the end of the 2023/24 financial year
and £196.5k accumulated revenue budget deficit at the end of the 2024/25 financial
year. The financial forecast is based the following pupil number assumptions for
Hovingham: October 2021 — 20 pupils, October 2022 — 8 pupils and October 2023 — 5

pupils.

In the event of Hovingham CE Primary closing on 31 March 2023, any legacy costs
associated with the operation of the school incurred in the 2023/24 financial year
would need to continue to be charged to the school budget. Any final deficit on the
school budget, after all costs have been accounted for, would need to be met from
local authority funds.

School Leadership

As stated above there is no permanent leadership in place for the school due to the
Headteacher post becoming vacant during the summer holiday period of 2022.
Temporary leadership is currently provided by the Executive Headteacher of Foston,
Terrington and Stillington schools, and covers both Hovingham School and St Hilda’s
CE VC Primary School in Ampleforth. Given both the practical and financial difficulties
presented by Hovingham having no pupils it would not be possible to engage a
permanent Headteacher to cover St Hilda's and Hovingham on the existing shared
cost arrangements. The Federation Governing Body will require clarity over the future
of Hovingham School to allow them to make permanent arrangements for future
leadership.

Standards and Curriculum

The most recent full Ofsted inspection for Hovingham School was in October 2017. At
that time there were 39 pupils on roll. Ofsted judged the school to be ‘Good’. However,
pupil numbers at Hovingham have fallen rapidly. As numbers fall, it is increasingly
difficult to provide the remaining pupils with access to the full range of experiences and
the quality of education they require. At present, if any pupils were to apply to join
Hovingham School there is no realistic prospect of them being able to get a full and
balanced school experience in the absence of any peers.

The last Ofsted inspection report for St Hilda’s Primary School, Ampleforth related to
an inspection in March 2020, and the overall effectiveness of the school was judged to
be ‘Good’.

Both of the above Ofsted inspections took place under the previous substantive
headteacher. From September 2022 the leadership at Hovingham and St Hilda’s has
been provided by the current Executive Headteacher of Foston, Terrington and
Stillington Primary Schools. The most recent Ofsted inspections at each of those three
schools have taken place under her leadership.

Foston Primary School was subject to a short inspection in January 2020 that
confirmed that the school continued to be judged ‘Good’.

Page 5

OFFICIAL



4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Terrington Primary School was subject to a short inspection in June 2018 that
confirmed the School continued to be judged ‘Good’.

The Executive Headteacher of Foston and Terrington began to provide leadership at
Stillington in August 2020, the School having been judged ‘Inadequate’ since 2016.
Stillington was last subject to full inspection in June 2021 when Ofsted recognised the
progress at the School. The overall inspection outcome was ‘Requires Improvement’
and leadership and management were judged to be ‘Good’.

PRIMARY SCHOOL PLACES IN THE LOCAL AREA

There are currently no pupils on roll at Hovingham CE so there will be no immediate
requirement to assist parents with seeking alternative places in the event of closure.
However, it is important to ensure that there are sufficient school places in the local
area. In October 2021 there were 31 pupils living in Hovingham’s discrete catchment
area and attending a North Yorkshire school, and a further 11 living in the catchment
area that Hovingham shares with St Hilda’s. Appendix 1 shows the schools that were
attended by those 42 pupils in October 2021. At that time 14 of them were attending
Hovingham and 28 were going to a total of nine alternative schools.

There are four other neighbouring primary schools within ¢.7 miles of Hovingham CE
VC Primary School (listed in Appendix 2). Across the area there are places available
in all year groups at various schools (Appendix 3).

The nearest school to Hovingham is Slingsby CP which is currently operating over their
net capacity of 77. Their facilities offer some ability to operate over net capacity but
limits them from having a planned admission number higher than 11.

Although Slingsby has typically been oversubscribed in recent years this is
predominantly due to local popularity rather than an ‘in area’ need for places. In October
2021 there were 94 pupils on roll at Slingsby. However, only 28 of these were pupils
living within the Slingsby catchment area. The rest of the breakdown of pupils attending
Slingsby School at that time is included as Appendix 4. Significant numbers of pupils
currently attend Slingsby from the catchment areas of Nawton CP, Amotherby CP and
St Hilda’s CE.

At October 2021 there were 48 children of primary school age registered with a GP
practice where their home address was recorded as being within Slingsby’s catchment
area. However, only 39 of these pupils attended state schools in North Yorkshire. A
number of pupils locally attend Independent schools. Therefore, the data clearly shows
that Slingsby School is a significant ‘net importer’ of pupils due to popularity and does
have sufficient capacity to accommodate children from its own catchment area.

If Hovingham were to close and Slingsby were to experience more ‘in area’ demand
for places from an enlarged catchment area then applicants from that catchment area
would receive priority for Reception places at the expense of ‘out area’ applicants. For
example, in Reception during October 2021, five of the 11 pupils were attending from
outside the catchment area and going forward with an enlarged catchment area we
would expect that proportion could reduce.

There is currently capacity in all year groups at Terrington CE VA Primary School,
which is the next nearest school. There are also places available in all year groups at

St Hilda’s CE Primary School. Both of these schools have adjacent catchment areas
to that of Hovingham CE Primary School and a Church of England designation.

Page 6

OFFICIAL



4.5

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

Appendix 2 provides projected numbers based on forecast birth rates, with potential
additional pupils from outstanding housing permissions and proposed housing
allocations. The County Council is aware of some potential proposals for additional
housing in rural areas of Ryedale including the Slingsby area. However, these are
considered to be at such an early stage that they cannot be a material factor when
considering the immediate future of Hovingham School given the unprecedented
prevailing circumstances.

IMPACT ON FEDERATION

The Federation between Hovingham and St Hilda’s Primary Schools has been in
place since 2016. The schools have operated an Executive Headteacher
arrangement with leadership costs apportioned between each school, as is typical of
federations. The potential closure of Hovingham School would result in the existing
Federation being dissolved. In that event there would need to be permanent future
leadership and governance arrangements established for St Hilda’s. This would be
expected, given the size of the school, to once again include an Executive
Headteacher model with leadership shared with another school(s), and the potential
for this arrangement to extend to federated governance across a group of schools.
The Federation Governing Body will be exploring the future options for St Hilda’s over
the coming months, and in parallel with the Hovingham closure proposal should that
proceed.

CATCHMENT AREA PROPOSALS

As set out in section 4 and Appendices 2 and 3 there is available capacity in the local
area to ensure sufficiency of school places. Parents of future children living in the
current Hovingham catchment area will be able to express a preference for school
places at any school. However, residents are entitled to have a local school which
their address gives them priority to attend in the event of oversubscription. Therefore,
the current Hovingham catchment area will need to be subsumed into the catchment
area for one or more of the surrounding schools.

Council Officers, having consulted with Diocesan representatives, have identified two
options which seem to offer sensible catchment schools to the residents of the
current catchment area. The current catchment and possible options are shown on
maps within Appendix 5. At present, there is a discrete catchment area solely for
Hovingham, and a second area which is a shared area between Hovingham and St
Hilda's, Ampleforth.

Option 1: Hovingham CE discrete catchment area (comprising the parishes of
Hovingham, Scackleton, Stonegrave and most of Coulton) to become part of the
catchment area for Slingsby CP. The area currently shared between Hovingham CE
and St Hilda’s to become part of St Hilda’s catchment area.

Option 2: Hovingham parish to become part of the Slingsby CP catchment area. The
area currently shared between Hovingham CE and St Hilda’s and the parish of
Stonegrave to become part of St Hilda’s catchment area. Parishes of Coulton and
Scackleton to become part of the catchment area for Terrington CE School.

As part of the consultation process the Local Authority will ask for views on the future
catchment boundaries from stakeholders. The consultation document will also outline

the part that schools’ catchments play in determining the eligibility for home to school
transport.

Page 7

OFFICIAL



7.0

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

8.1

9

9.1

CONSULTATION PROCESS AND TIMESCALE

Should a decision be made to initiate a consultation on the proposed closure of
Hovingham CE VC Primary School, a period of four consultation weeks is to be
observed. This is less than the normal six weeks in recognition of the unprecedented
situation of the School, the need to provide clarity to staff, governors and the community
of the Federation at the earliest date, and in order to provide opportunity to conclude
the process by the end of the school’s financial year in light of the financial issues set
out in section 3. An indicative timetable is set out below. A consultation document is
currently being drafted.

A separate staff consultation process, including a meeting for staff and their
professional associations and unions, would run in parallel with the consultation on the
closure proposal.

The final decision on closure would be taken by the Executive (or by the Executive
Member for Schools if there are no objections during the representation period).

Suggested key dates are shown below:

Approval to Consult by Executive Members 18 October 2022

Consultation opens (4 weeks) 31 October 2022

Public meeting 9 November 2022 -
thc

Consultation closes 28 November 2022

County Council’'s Executive considers 13 December 2022

consultation response

Executive decision to publish statutory 13 December 2022

notices

Publication of statutory notices 6 January 2023

Representation period starts 6 January 2023

(4 weeks)

Representation period ends 3 February 2023

Final decision by County Council’s 21 February 2023

Executive

Proposed school closure date 31 March 2023

THE SCHOOL SITE

The school building is not owned by the County Council. Decisions about the future
use of the school building will be taken by the owners after the closure proposal has
been determined.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Executive Member for Schools is recommended to provide approval to consult on
a proposal to close Hovingham CE VC Primary School with effect from 31 March 2023.

Stuart Carlton
CORPORATE DIRECTOR — CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S SERVICE.

Report prepared by Matt George, Strategic Planning Officer

Page 8

OFFICIAL



Action Agreed L, Executive Member
Date:

Action Requested ..., Corporate Director
Date:

List of Appendices:

Appendix 1 — Hovingham CE VC Primary Pupil Breakdown as at October 2021

Appendix 2 — Local Schools

Appendix 3 — Indicative Table of Places Available in Local Schools

Appendix 4 — Slingsby CP Primary Pupil Breakdown as at October 2021

Appendix 5 — Maps showing Current Catchment areas and Local Schools as well as potential
future catchment proposals.

Page 9

OFFICIAL



0T obed

Appendix 1 - Hovingham CE VC Primary Pupil Breakdown as at October 2021

Sch ool Name:

Hovingham CE WC Primary School |

Pupils attending the abowe named school as at October 2021 Census

Totalinc Total emc
DfE Mo School M R Year1|Year 2|Yea 3| Year 4|Year 5|Year 6 nursay % roll Frsery % roll
pupi= o M]a 15
3054 Howingham CE VC Primary School 1 2 1 3 3 3 13 65.00 13 65.00
3005 & 3054 5t HEda's Amplatorth CE VC Primary Schood & Hovingham CE VC Primary School 1 1 5.00 1 5.00
2075 Nawton CP Schoal 1 1 5.00 1 5.00
a3z Slingsby CP School 1 1 2 10.00 2 10.00
2408 Morton CP Schodl 1 1 5.00 1 5.00
33 Tarington CE VA Primary School 1 1 2 10.00 2 10.00
Unknown postoode o 0.00 o o.00
Total pupils attending as at October 2021 o 1 3 1 1 4 5 5 20 100 A 100
5?;";1 ::dc‘.hment Hovingham CE VG Primary School pupils attending N orth Yorkshire schools as at October 2021
% of total
pupik
Toaline. | attending | Tad e
DfE Mo. School N R ear1|Yesr 2|Yes 3| Yesr 4|Year 5|Year § nursey from rursery % roll
pupi= W I‘lhll‘l Ui
catchment
Fes
3054 Howingham CE VC Primary School 0 1 2 1 0 3 3 3 13 4154 13 4184
2075 Mawton CP School 1 1 1 3 .88 3 968
2132 Slingsby CP School 1 1 2 4 12.80 4 12.80
2188 Sheriff Hutton Primary School 1 1 3.23 1 323
2238 Helmsley CP School 1 3 1 5 1812 5 1613
3113 Sutton on the Fores t CE WC Primary School 1 1 2 845 2 645
33N Temington CE VA Primary School 1 1 333 1 323
3500 5t Benedicts Catholic Primary School - a Catholicvoluntary scademy 1 1 2 845 2 645
Total pupils attending as at Cctober 2021 0 2 6 5 4 T 4 3 H 100.00 H 100
Defln:::lﬂ:?_;?:ment = H|I|:Ia"sﬁmplefnriiiaE:CSZr;::r:;:de:: e TSNS pupils attending North Yorkshire schools as at October 2021
% of total
pupik
Ti:SI attending | Tl ax:
DfE MNo. School M R Year1|Year 2| Year 2| Year 4|Year 5|Yeaw & from urssry % roll
US| within pupils
pupils catchment
HES
3054 Howingham CE VC Primary School 1 1 8.33 1 9.09
3005 5t Hilda's Ampleforth CE VC Primary School 1 1 833 1 9.09
33 Temington CE VA Primary School 1 1 2 1667 1 9.09
3800 5t Benedicts Catholic Primary School - a Catholicvoluntary academy 1 1 2 4 33.33 4 36.36
202 Crayke CE VC Primary School 1 1 1 3 26.00 3 27 2T
2132 Slingsby CP School 1 1 8.33 1 .09
0 0.00 0 0.00
Total pupils attending as at October 2021 1 0 3 1 1 2 4 0 12 100.00 il 100
Registered with GP as at October 2021 living within catchment inc shared area [ 2 1 ] 9 [ 8 [ 1 10 [ 5§ ] ]

OFFICIAL




TT obed

Appendix 2 Local Schools

Hovingham St Hilda's St Benedict's Terrington CE Slingsby Total
CEVC Ampleforth CE | Catholic Primary VA Primary Community
Primary VC Primary School —a School Primary School
School School Catholic
voluntary
academy
Distance from
Hovingham CE VC 7.2 6.9 4.6 2.2
Primary School by road
Last Ofsted Inspection Good Good Good* Good Good
Net Capacity (places 56 49 105 63 77 350
available at the school)
Current pupil roll 0 27 72 26 91 216
Current capacity -/+ 56 22 33 37 -14 134
Pupil roll 2023/24 0 28 71 29 91 219
Pupil roll 2024/25 0 26 73 29 91 219
Pupil roll 2025/26 0 27 69 30 88 214
Pupil roll 2026/27 0 27 69 26 84 206
Pupil roll 2027/28 0 27 67 29 83 206
Potential additional pupils from housing
Pupils from outstanding
permissions by 0 1 0 1 11 13
2027/28**
Potential pupils from
future housing — Local 0 0 0 0 0 0
Plan (over 15 years)

*Inspection date prior to academy conversion

**Based on 1 primary-aged pupil from every 4 new houses

OFFICIAL




2T obed

Appendix 3 Indicative Table of Places Available in Local Schools

Distance from Total Net
School Hovingham CE | Reception | Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 | Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 .
on roll | Capacity
School
Hovingham
Slingsby CP 2.2 PAN PAN PAN PAN PAN PAN PAN 91 77
Terrington CE 4.6 26 63
St Benedict’s
RC, 6.9 72 105
Ampleforth
St Hilda’s CE,
Ampleforth 2 21 49

PAN = School is at planned admission number, all applications will be dealt with on an individual basis and Admissions Team will have discussions
with appropriate Headteacher to see if the school are in a position to take additional pupils in that year group.

OFFICIAL



¢T obed

Appendix 4 - Slingsby Community Primary Pupil Breakdown as at October 2021

|school Name:

Slingsby CP Scheol

Pupils attending the above named school as at October 2021 Census

Totalinc.
DfE No. School M R |Year1|Year 2|Year3|Year 4| Year 5|Year 6| nursery % roll
pupils
2132 Slingsby CP School 5 3 7 1 3 3 ] 28 29.79
2074 Malton CP School 2 4 1 7 7.45
2075 MNawton CP School 2 1 1 1 1 1 4 11 11.70
2151 Welbum CP School 1 1 1.06
2236 Helmsley CP School 1 2 1 2 2 1 9 957
2246 Amotherby CP School 1 1 4 3 4 3 4 20 21.28
3005 St Hilda's Ampleforth CE VC Primary School 2 4 1 1 8 8.51
3054 Hovingham CE VC Primary School 1 1 2 4 4.26
3331 Terrington CE VA Primary School 1 1 1 1 4 426
2222 8 2235 Pickering Community Junior School & Fickering Community |nfant Schoal 1 1 2 213
Unknown postcode 0 0.00
Total pupils attending as at October 2021 0 11 14 15 17 11 8 18 94 100.00
:;f;nf:,c: F,atchment Slingsby CP School pupils attending North Yorkshire schools as at October 2021
% of total
pupils
Totalinc. | attending
DIfE No. School M R |Year1|Year 2(Year3|Year 4| YearS|Year 6| nursery from
pupils | within
catchmen
t area
2132 Slingshy CP School 0 5 3 7 1 3 3 (] 28 71.79
2151 Welbum CP School 1 1 1 3 769
2186 Sheriff Hutton Primary School 1 1 2 513
2246 Amotherby CP School 1 1 2 4 10.26
3054 Hovingham CE VC Primary School 1 1 2 513
0 5 4 8 3 4 6 9 39 100.00
|Registered with GP as at October 2021 living within catchment | 8 6 1 3 5 8 7 43

OFFICIAL




T abed

Appendix 5 - Maps showing Current Catchment areas and Local Schools as well as potential future catchment proposals.

",
o,
,
O
.
=

3 : N
o, R
AR RN
\\ ‘\;\\&&;&&\\\
\ \\ 1 G gl Chuech of gl
N

NN

SN
™,
\

R
ARSI,
AN
%\ NN h\\ ‘\:: ,"‘
n g N L8P0

*
':\\"3 45%

5,

q:?;’\x &

.
M,
W
.
N
N
i

25 4 ‘w,h
{ *’} ot &:: :}"1
e elpnety .
”\%:,)‘ o

ety

s A

A

B et
-’

4
] s

o
i

¢ Frimavy e

S
S
2

Reproduced fram the Orénance Survey mapping with

the permission of the Contreller of His Majesty’s

Stationery Office © Crown Copyright. Unautherised

repraduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead

to proseculion or civil proceedings, North Yarkshirs

Caunty Council 2022 Licence No. 100017846

Compilation & Analysis: Nicola Howells,

Slralegic Planning, CYPS 5.10.22 (s o gt ekey

(o chrnt Eant vt Py S

-

Current Catchment Map: Red is Hovingham CE, Blue is St Hilda’s CE and the central hatched area is shared between both schools.

OFFICIAL



GT obed

Harome

i Sproxton

\ Oldstead

/- ‘Ampleforth Oswaldkirk

Byland with Wass: == | N

H 3
St Benedict's Catholic Primary School - a Catholic voluntary academy
N O o T g N . N 3

Coxwold Newburgh R i 4

/

Gll\lng Easi

(
7
/

Yearsley

| Oulston HH :
Thornton-on-the-Hill T

J | Dalby-cum-Skewsby |

¢ Crayke [
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with [ ™~ A
_the permission of the Controller of His Majesty's iCrayke Church of England Vn\untarv Comrolled anary School / N
‘Slatlonery Office @ Crown Copyright. Unautherised i ™ Py
reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead B \ / \ / S~
to prosecution or civil proceedings. North Yorkshire ) — . / T
County Council 2022 Licence No. 100017946 ) Whenby N, T
Compilation & Analysis: Nicola Howells, ~ N\ /
Strategic Planning, CYPS 28.9.22 —, - —_{

ETerrington Church of Englénd Voluntary Aided Primary School

Terrington

Nunnington

Salton

p
Barton—le-Stregt

“Appleton-le-Streq

\

Coneysthorpe

Henderskelfe

Proposed option 1 - Hovingham CE discrete catchment area to become part of the catchment area for Slingsby CP. The area currently shared
between Hovingham CE and St Hilda’s to become part of St Hilda’s catchment area.

OFFICIAL



9T abed

3 N !
e ~ .
— ™~ -
4/ -
y, N e Harome
Sproxton

p e

D S " Oswaldkirk 5 ‘
.é«mm Cathoie Prifary School - a Caifiol waluniary acadormy / Stonegrave

/- Ampleforth

w

)} A
e 4
b J
\ . ) "
W —
|
’ Yearsley
/ /
{ | OQulston (
“Thornton-on-the-Hill,
\ /
N r/ A
N\ ) - R ~ S\
p . Ny \
~ T o /
5 \ p
NS \ L
| N Brandsby-cum-Stearsby
/ 4 - -
/ Crayke p I??Iby cum-Skewsb
'\_‘ i1 / ™
eaﬂwmummmmw?nmvsmm\ ‘,-r' ‘9 i i ~ i ( A‘\_
f / ~— | \
{ ( - \
\ ) .
Whenby ™
Reproduced from the Ordnance Surve; mapping with / g R AN Y
the permission of the Controller of His Majesty’s T ™~ 7
Stationery Office @ Crown Copyright. Unautharised 1% ™\ / ) A~
reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead ! N = ~
to prosecution or civil proceedings. North Yorkshire Stillington Mart\on-cum-Moxby [ ~—
County Council 2022 Licence No. 100017948 N { h
Compilation & Analysis: Nicola Howells, t;—.mw Primary Schosl \
i \

Strategic Planning, CYPS 6.10.22

Nunnington

~ ' - -
,-I’
. ‘
\\\ -
Salton r
Brawby

l
N

\//'
Henderskelfe
- 1\
\ )
\ /
\ py
-
<
i
i
ol | @ oy
ulmer | )
—Welburn, Malton |

N\

Proposed option 2: Hovingham parish to become part of the Slingsby CP catchment area. The area currently shared between Hovingham CE
and St Hilda’s and the parish of Stonegrave to become part of St Hilda’s catchment area. Parishes of Coulton and Scackleton to become part of

the catchment area for Terrington CE School.

OFFICIAL



NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S SERVICE
CORPORATE DIRECTOR’S MEETING WITH EXECUTIVE MEMBERS
18™ October 2022

Outdoor Learning Service — Fees and Charges for September 2023 to August 2024

This report contains exempt information as described in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule
12A to the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) (information relating to the financial or
business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information))
and it is considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public
interest in disclosing the information.

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To gain approval of a fees and charges structure for Outdoor Learning for
September 2023 to August 2024

2.0 BACKGROUND

2.1 In line with the Council’s financial regulations, approval for fees and charges
is a Key Decision.

2.2 Outdoor Learning is required to publish fees and charges for the following
school year in order to open to bookings for residential clients, and to publish
a calendar of training courses.

3.0 ISSUES

3.1 Bookings should be opened and confirmed in the autumn term, with under
occupancy data being made available in January in order to market and
secure further bookings.

3.2  Alarge proportion of schools are long-standing clients. Terms and conditions
have recently been updated in conjunction with Legal Services. This ensures
that confirmation regarding booking details is clear to customers with precise
deadlines for deposits, balances and expected communication relating to
changes to booking details.

3.3 Fees and charges are currently determined on an academic year basis. Fees
and charges have been calculated with the following factors in place;
e Occupancy across all residential, day provision and training courses
achieves levels calculated in the business case data modelling.
e Full-cost recovery of the service operating budget is achieved
(excluding Educational Visits SLA costs and income)
e Surplus margins are set for each delegate place.

3.4 Inflation has been added by using the Office of National Statistics Consumer

Price Index. Where possible specific categories have been used, or pay
calculated according to current pay awards. Where no category is applicable

Page 17

OFFICIAL



3.5

the standard current inflation (September 2022) rate of 9.9% has been
applied.

Data from the trial seasonal pricing is not conclusive at this stage. The
number of pupils attending in the low season of 22-23 has decreased in
comparison to 19-20. Current patterns however could still be impacted as a
result of Covid (e.g. Covid measures required during winter, as well as
schools adjusting traditional booking patterns in order to accommodate year
groups who have missed out on earlier visits and are at the end of their
school year e.g. Year 6).

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

Fees and charges have been calculated by determining an apportionment of
the overall budget according to operational requirements (central
administration, teaching, facilities, property and transport).

The increased composite inflation rates is due to the current individual
inflation rates for the Council for fuel oil, electricity and vehicle fuel & oil.

Forecast outturn is based on minimum course delegate numbers being
achieved for all courses and occupancy as detailed in the business case
modelling.

All other costings are priced to ensure full-cost recovery based on achieving
modelled occupancy figures or courses delivered.

Fees and charges are increased by at least current inflation in line with the
Council Constitution and Financial Regulations, or there is a valid commercial
reason to not increase fees by inflation.

4.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
4.1 There are no known legal implications.
5.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS
5.1 Setting fees and charges in line with base budget and a composite inflation
increase accounts for the varying increases in utility bills and other costs. It
should ensure, if occupancy targets are met, surplus in line with the business
case modelling.
7.0 RECOMMENDATION
7.1 To approve fees as detailed in the confidential appendix.
STUART CARLTON

CORPORATE DIRECTOR — CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S SERVICE

Adrian Clarke

Principal Education Adviser (Support)

Page 18

OFFICIAL



Consulted
Date:
Consulted
Date:
Agreed:

Date:

Page 19

OFFICIAL

Executive Member

Executive Member

Corporate Director



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Items for Executive Member decision
	KD - Outdoor Learning Fees and Charges Sept 2023 - Aug 2024


